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Our Story

The current incarnation of Gidgee Healing has evolved over
many years. Recognition of the fundamental need for culturally
appropriate health care for Indigenous communities in Mount Isa
and surrounding areas has been articulated for decades.

The initial endeavours to establish an Aboriginal health service began in the 1970s,
driven by community members who recognised the need for a tailored and
specific approach to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health. The demands
of delivering continuity of service in a remote environment, and fulfilling the
needs of community, while managing the complex frameworks of the political,
funding, and health care landscape have been a consistent challenge over
many years.

In 2008, Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Ltd

was formed, which today trades as Gidgee Healing. While the name of this
entity clearly states the function of the service, it seemed empty of meaning or
significance for the communities it was established to serve. And so, a name
was sought that held cultural relevance for the Indigenous communities of
Mount Isa and beyond.

After much dialogue with Community, the name Gidgee Healing emerged.
The Gidgee tree is a strong and resilient wood, rich in healing properties. There
is much about the Gidgee tree that embodies the values of the health service.

Today, Gidgee Healing represents all that has gone before and everything yet to
come. It's an amalgamation of struggles past and future potential. It brings the
experience and lessons learned from the past to inform the hopes and ambitions
for the positive health outcomes for Indigenous communities in the future.

Integrated human services framework

New model of care for Normanton Recovery Centre
Galvanised regional relationships

Increased Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Workforce from 42% to 66%




Our Essence —

he Gidgee Woo

The name Gidgee Healing is a tribute to the Gidyea or Gidgee
tree, which is native to Mount Isa and other arid regions of
Australia. The tree has special significance to our traditional
owners who have used it extensively for generations.

As a health care service provider, the essence of Gidgee Healing embodies the
healing properties of its namesake plant in a literal sense, however, there are
other parallels with the tree and its use that are deeply ingrained in the DNA
of the organisation. Resilience, healing, shelter, community, tradition, comfort,
and care are all qualities associated with the use of the Gidgee tree and are
embedded in our ethos.

The phrase ‘Gidgee wood’ has become synonymous with the Gidgee Healing
philosophy — the Gidgee way. It's how we talk about the way we do things.

The Gidgee Way or The Gidgee Wood is at the core of our purpose and principles
and permeates everything we do. It's our litmus test and sense-check. It's the
measure, mode and means by which we deliver services and make decisions.

It underpins our vision, mission and values and represents our present and our
future. And it's the mirror we hold ourselves up to.

Just as the abundant healing and nurturing qualities of the Gidgee tree work
across different spheres, so too does Gidgee Healing's approach to wellness.
We are committed to working with every individual as a whole being — mind,
body, and spirit — not just a series of symptoms and pathologies to be ‘fixed'.
Our approach to healing embraces the physical, mental, emotional and cultural
dimensions of everyone in our care.






Goal, Vision, Values

Our Goal

To provide high quality, sustainable and comprehensive
Primary Health Care services that are culturally safe,
responsive to community needs, and integrated with
other complementary service providers.

Our Values

Cultural respect

Gidgee Healing recognises the cultural diversity that
exists amongst its clients and respects the rights, views,
values and expectations of Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander peoples in service delivery.

Health sector responsibility

Gidgee Healing recognises that, while responsibility for
improvement of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
health rests with the health system as a whole, it can play
a key role in ensuring responsiveness of the sector.

Holistic approach

Gidgee Healing has adopted a view of health that
encompasses the wellbeing of an individual, family and
community, and recognises the broader social, cultural,
spiritual and environmental influences on health.

Community control of primary healthcare

Gidgee Healing supports community control, participation
and decision making as a fundamental component of the
health system.

Our Vision

To make a significant and growing contribution towards
achieving equity in health outcomes for the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander peoples across our geographic
service area, including the Mount Isa, North West and
Lower Gulf regions.

Building capacity

Gidgee Healing recognises the ongoing need to build
capacity for improved health outcomes through both its
own services and mainstream services, as well as through
workforce, physical infrastructure and data management.

Working together

Gidgee Healing recognises the importance of working
with a range of government, nongovernment and private
providers to ensure coordination of efforts for maximum
benefits to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.

Local decision making
Gidgee Healing is committed to local level consultation
and input to health service planning and delivery.

Accountability

Gidgee Healing is committed to improving the health
of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community
of Mount Isa and the other communities in our
geographic area.

Promoting good health

Gidgee Healing recognises the importance of illness
prevention as a fundamental component of its health
service delivery.
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Our Heart
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The Gidgee Wood is embodied in our
heart — our ‘why’ — by being community
controlled, and empowering the Mob.

We believe that access to culturally safe and appropriate
care is everyone's right, and we're committed to making
sure it is accessible through a range of channels. We
want to empower people to take care of their health
and make it easy to access the means to do this.

We are dedicated to nurturing a healthier, happier
community by providing positive health outcomes
originating from community, by community. We are
passionate about facilitating long-term positive impacts
on the health and well-being of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people in our region and beyond.

Gidgee Healing aspires to be a trusted extension

of community to help navigate Australia’s complex
healthcare system and integrate otherwise
disconnected services. We provide access services
in aged care, mental health, social and emotional
wellbeing, drug and alcohol misuse, and family
support. Our heart — our purpose —is like the trunk
of the Gidgee tree, with many networks of branches
and leaves connected to and growing from it.



Our Spirit

Gidgee Wood exists in our spirit through
supporting the people and organisations
that enable us to provide our services
and programs. Our spirit — our people —
display the values and beliefs of Gidgee
Wood in all that they do.







Our Philosophy —
The Gidgee Wood

Organisational
Stewardship

The beginning of the period saw us welcome a new CEO
to the helm. Renee Blackman has continued to embed
and extend the great work that Dallas Leon set in motion.
She has made a remarkable start to her leadership of
Gidgee Healing, making significant inroads to implement
the structures and processes needed to support the
growth of recent years and ensure our longevity.

Through Renee’s first year of leadership, Gidgee Healing
has undergone an organisational restructure, seen the
implementation of a new finance system, and made
significant inroads to bedding down our relationships with
our Tripartite Agreement partners and the communities
we now serve in the Lower Gulf Region. She has focussed
her efforts on consolidating our recent rapid evolution by
ensuring our organisation has the internal mechanisms
in place to sustain the growth and continue to deliver on
our vision. This work has gone a long way to ensure that
we remain true to our community controlled philosophy
by engaging in industry best practices to support the
broader needs of our expanded service delivery area and
associated workforce.

Outside the organisation, Renee has done a lot of work
around strengthening relationships with our remote
communities, health care partners, and funding partners.
These relationships are fundamental to Gidgee Healing
achieving its vision and goals.

Moving forward, Renee will continue to focus on the
organisation’s internal growth and development. She is
passionate about making sure we have the right people
to deliver our vision. And she is committed to having the
systems, structures and supports in place to set them up
for success. Under Renee’s stewardship, | believe that
Gidgee Healing is well positioned for great success in the
provision of truly community controlled care.



Regional Consolidation

Gidgee Healing has continued to evolve our presence in
our regional communities. This year we have focussed on
nurturing relationships with local Elders and Traditional
Owners to better understand the health concerns of
community. We've worked closely with our partners in the
Tripartite Agreement — North West Hospital and Health
Service, and the Western Queensland Primary Health
network — to deepen those connections and work even
better together in serving the needs of the Indigenous
populations of the Lower Gulf.

As part of this effort, we hosted a tour of the Lower Gulf
communities with the Chairs and CEOs of each of the
entities. The goal was to meet with local health councils,
mayors, and other community leaders to discuss how our
integrated model could serve their people better. We were
joined in Normanton by the Minister and Director General
of Queensland Health, Hon Dr Steven Miles, MP and
Michael Walsh, who were very interested in our approach,
the success we have achieved to date, and how this might
be applied elsewhere. This is a model that is yet to be
successful anywhere else. We are deeply proud of the
work that has been done to date.

Strategic Projects

During the previous reporting period, we conducted

a tender process to select a consultant to undertake

a review of our communication strategy and cultural
safety practices. This work was carried out during

the 2019 financial year by Cox Inall Ridgeway who
worked alongside our teams to develop an overarching
communications strategy which is currently being
implemented by the People and Culture team.

Cox Inall Ridgeway has continued to work with us to help
ensure we have processes in place that support Gidgee
Healing to meet best practice standards with regards to
the culturally safe operation of our organisation. They have
worked with us holistically to look at all aspects of our
organisational culture, bringing everything back to our

‘why' — the Gidgee Wood. This essence embodies all

elements of our cultural integrity framework. From this
process we are also considering operational factors like
staff wellness, workforce strategy, and people and culture.
This work as also extended to a review of our strategic
vision and direction.

The lessons we're learning from these strategic projects
are also informing our governance project.



Governance

As our delivery model continues to evolve, and we
work to strengthen our relationships in the Lower Gulf
communities, we have been revisiting our governance
model and how this also needs to mature to continue
to align with the principles of an Aboriginal Community
Controlled Health Service, now that we are a truly
regional organisation.

The Board has been working with our CEO to scope

a dedicated project to investigate and address our
requirements relating to our governance structure to
ensure we are meeting our commitment to remain a
community controlled provider. The project will work
with our members to help us identify the way forward to
ensure all our communities are represented on our Board.

During the year we filled Board vacancies for a community-
based and a skills-based role. We are pleased to welcome
Alan Nyhuis and Patricia Richards to the Board. Alan has
a background in the community services sector and is also
a qualified legal professional. Patricia is currently working
with the Queensland Department of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Partnerships (DATSIP). Both bring extensive
knowledge and experience of working with Indigenous
communities and have already added significant value.
The vacancies are currently filled on a casual basis and
will be up for re-election for the 2020 financial year.

Future Focus

As we look to the future, Gidgee Healing will remain
focussed on consolidating growth and operationalising
our strategic vision. Our next major milestone will be
the evolution of our governance model to ensure our
communities in the Gulf region are represented in our
organisation at the highest level.

In terms of service delivery, there have been many
conversations around our potential involvement in the
NDIS. It is important to us that our members can access
services, and while we are currently not looking to
become an NDIS provider, we are investigating what
NDIS means to the northwest and gulf communities,
and how we might support and facilitate access to good
services for our members and their communities.

On a personal level, I'm excited about this phase for Gidgee
Healing. This next chapter of our evolution is all about
continuous improvement and finding ways to better serve
our communities. It's about capitalising on our successes,
learning from our mistakes and dedicating ourselves to
becoming a leader as an Aboriginal Community Controlled
Health Service and become an employer of choice for
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people.






Regional Services

Consolidating our services in the Lower Gulf has been a
highlight of our activities this year. It was wonderful for me
to personally meet the people in these communities and talk
to them about what Gidgee Healing has to offer and what
we are working towards. The broader engagement strategy
in our regional centres has taken a multi-faceted approach
in which our new communications and marketing team has
been instrumental.

Our relationship with the North West Hospital and Health
Service (NWHHS) and the Western Queensland Primary
Health Network (WQPHN) has gone from strength to
strength as we have further consolidated the Tripartite
Agreement. Together we have stood our ground to
challenge the status quo with regards to services that were
not necessarily serving our populations well. We have
been united in our front to have the difficult conversations
with entrenched clinical leaders that have been necessary
to implement an Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Service model. We are incredibly grateful to have had our
partners in our corner. Never before has there been an
appetite within other key health organisations to have the
discussions needed to bring about such significant change.
This is a huge testament to the groundwork laid by our
previous CEO Dallas Leon.

During the year we had our first joint planning day, with
senior managers from all three organisations. One of

the main challenges highlighted as part of the planning
process was maintaining a consistent clinical workforce.
The James Cook University (JCU) Centre for Rural and
Remote Health (CRRH) (previously MICRRH) has been
instrumental in supporting us in this regard. We have a
long history with the centre and over the last 12 months,
they have been a key factor in supporting Gidgee Healing
through undergraduate student placement, post graduate
student placement, and GP Registrar training in the rural
and remote areas we've grown into. They will continue to
be central to tackling this issue through our own ‘home
grown’ pipeline of health professionals from people in the
region and encouraging previous locals to return.

Realisation of
Human Services

One of the most significant changes we have made to
our service provision this year is to expand our capability
through the delivery of fully realised human services,
focussing on family as the centre.

Since last year, when we reported the formation of a
consortium with North and West Remote Health and Save
the Children to support vulnerable children and families, we
have brought these services back into Gidgee Healing as
part of a fully integrated human services portfolio.

Evolving a comprehensive portfolio of human services has
enabled us to provide this support in a way that is fully
integrated with our primary health care services while
keeping family at the heart of service provision. It has
been an essential part of developing a truly holistic service
delivery model.

Normanton
Recovery Centre

With Gidgee Healing now the sole provider of services at the
Normanton Recovery Centre, we have been deep in review
and discovery to identify a model of care that will work for our
community and support Gidgee Healing to create a place that
truly looks after people who are recovering.

Our newly appointed Director of Human Services has
engaged a new Centre Manager and together we have
been working with the Queensland Aboriginal and
Islander Health Council (QAIHC) and other experts in this
space to review the previous model and explore other
models that have proven successful.

We are looking forward to implementing a new model of
care over the next 12 months that will provide culturally
appropriate recovery care to the communities we serve.



Aboriginal Employer
of Choice

We have set a target to achieve 75% Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander representation in our workforce at
every level. We are currently at 64% which has increased
from 45% in the previous financial year.

Over and above representation, Gidgee Healing is
seeking to become an Aboriginal employer of choice.

To this end, we are working with organisations such as
Young People Ahead (YPA) to identify young people in
our community who are specifically interested in careers
in health, to support them with traineeships that will set
them up in their future careers.

Our traineeship program provides participants a
Certificate Ill in Community Services, which affords them
a broad knowledge base and plenty of scope upon which
to build a career in health. Over the last 12 months, four
trainees have successfully completed the program, with
three now in full time employment with Gidgee Healing
and the fourth currently completing a bachelor of nursing.

Gidgee Healing'’s long standing partner, the JCU CCRH
will also be integral to this strategy, helping to place
undergraduate and postgraduate students in Gidgee
Healing clinics.

We are also exploring ways of attracting experienced
workers with transferable skills who are looking for a
change in career. Gidgee Healing provides a supported
move into the health industry, providing a soft entry
and framework for transitioning into the clinical space,
through trusted mentors and professional development.

Quality and Safety

Over the last 12 months, we have had a strong push to
enhance quality and safety across the organisation. This
has included revisiting our risk management and quality
frameworks. We have, in essence, held a mirror up to
ourselves to check in and make sure we are remaining
accountable as the organisation continues to evolve.

We have worked hard to lay the foundations for a
culture of good governance and embedded quality and
safety across the organisation, from service delivery to
corporate administrative functions. Our LogiQC safety,
quality and risk system is now automated and provides a
solid framework to support us in the application of best
practice principles.

Challenges

One of the biggest challenges for any remote and rural
service provider is to maintain a consistent workforce.
We continue to work hard to find ways to attract a good
rural generalist workforce across health and human
services to ensure consistency of service provision for our
communities. Attracting and retaining the right workforce
across the board — not just doctors and nurses — is the
most clear and present risk to Gidgee Healing being able
to achieve its goals.

Keeping two-way transparent communication flowing
with our communities is something we will continue
to focus on. This is an essential part of our charter to
provide an Aboriginal Community Controlled model of
health care. It is the means by which we measure how
well we are meeting the needs of community and how
we can do better.

While our relationships with our partners NWHHS
and WQPHN are healthy and strong, our challenge is
to continue to nurture these linkages. This continued
unity will ensure we are providing the most culturally
appropriate healthcare to our communities. Systems
integration between our organisations continues to
be an issue and a potential barrier to delivering a truly
integrated model of healthcare.



Looking Ahead

Our immediate future is focussed on continuing to
consolidate the massive growth that Gidgee Healing
has experienced in the last five years. This will in part be
achieved by tackling our biggest challenges head on.

A big push for the coming year will be to grow our human
and health services workforce by developing our own
health professionals and attracting new graduates to the
region. We are actively seeking to create pathways to
training and employment for local people that will ultimately
build pipelines into health and human services professions.
Gidgee Healing aims to lead our sector in the availability of
Aboriginal health workers to support service provision.

We are working with a range of organisations such as
Health Workforce Queensland, YPA, and James Cook
University to explore possible education initiatives that
would help to supply a home-grown pipeline of health
professionals. Possible avenues include school based
and vocational courses, and delivering more tertiary
undergraduate courses locally, with Gidgee Healing
providing work placement opportunities.

As an Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Service,
we are also keen to explore the opportunity to provide
communities the choice for traditional healing within our
suite of services.

Personally, | feel as though | have achieved a great deal in
my first 12 months with Gidgee Healing. | have a terrifically
motivated and capable team and | have thoroughly
enjoyed working with them to tackle the challenges and
opportunities that have been presented in this time. This
first year seems to have flown by and | feel as though there
is still significant value that | can bring to the organisation
as we continue to work towards providing a holistic,
integrated model of health and human services to the
communities of Mount Isa and the Lower Gulf.

Renee Blackman, CEO



The
Board

Shaun
Solomon
CHAIR

Shaun is a Birri and
Ewamian man who has
lived in the North West
for most his life and
has been working in
Mount Isa for the past
17 years. Indigenous
Health and Higher
Education has been the
focus of Shaun'’s career,
which has enabled him
to work closely with
the Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander
peoples of North West
Queensland. Shaun
also sits as a member of
the North Queensland
Training Network.

Mona
Phillips
DEPUTY CHAIR

Mona is a Jaru/Waanyi
woman who has an
extensive history of
working in and around
the Gulf and North-
Western Queensland
as well as the Northern
Territory. Mona'’s work
experience covered a
wide range in social
health; including health
promotion, alcohol
and drug addictions
and domestic and
family violence. At

the age of 50 Mona
gained a Social
Science Degree in
Aboriginal Community
Management and
Development. Mona
was a founding
member and has been
on the Gidgee Healing
board since 2014.

Michael
Martin
DIRECTOR

Michael Martin OAM
FCPA is a skilled based
Director and was
appointed in 2013. He
is Chair of the Audit
and Risk Committee
and provides Financial
Management
leadership to the
Board. Michael lives in
the Northern Territory
where he is active

in Health and is a
member of a number
of Government Boards.
Michael is committed to
Indigenous Health and
was National Chair of
Men's Health in 1999
and 2000. He travels
to Mt Isa regularly on
Board matters.



Leann
Shaw
DIRECTOR

Leann is Nugubu and
Wik woman who has a
long history of working
in various health

and social services
across the region,
including alcohol,
tobacco and other
drugs and women’s
health and issues.
Leann is committed to
Indigenous rights and
ensuring community is
supported to achieve
better health and
well-being.

Darren
Walden
DIRECTOR

Darren is Waanyi and
Gangalidda man with
family and cultural
links to Doomadgee
and other Lower Gulf
communities. Darren
has lived in and worked
in Mt Isa for around 32
years which includes
experience with local
Native Title Boards
and approximately 22
years working directly
in the Aboriginal
health field. He is a
strong advocate for the
community.

Patricia
Richards
DIRECTOR

Patricia is a Waluwarra
woman from the
Georgina River. She

is deeply involved
with the local Mt Isa
community and works
within the Department
of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander
partnership (DATSIP).
Patricia’s community
involvement is one of
her greatest assets.
She volunteers with
various sporting
organisations,
working across
remote communities
within the north west
region to build strong
relationships and
partnerships with
government, non-
government and the
private sector. Patricia
was appointed to the
Board in 2019 tofill a
casual vacancy.

Alan
Nyhuis
DIRECTOR

Alan Nyhuis has been
a Mount Isa local
since 2013. With a
background in law
and social work, he is
passionate about using
his knowledge and
experience to promote
Indigenous interests,
particularly in the
health and wellbeing
space. Alan has
extensive experience
in the community
services sector,
working with families
and young people at
risk and in crisis.



They provide a suite of professional human resources
services, including systems, policies, and processes
that support our people — the cornerstone of our
integrated service delivery model. The Marketing and
Communication function also sits within the People and
Culture Team. Prior to the restructure these functions
existed within the broader Corporate Services team.

As we work towards our vision of becoming an Aboriginal
Employer of Choice, we have continued our ‘home-grown’
approach to attracting and retaining the right people to
our organisation. We are committed to developing and
upskilling our existing workforce and sourcing locals
wherever possible. We are creating pathways to careers
in health, by working with organisations such as YPA

to offer opportunities for traineeships, and James Cook
University to create work placement opportunities for
students. We have set a target to achieve 75% Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander representation in our workforce
at every level. Currently, the level of representation stands
at 64% which has increased from 45% in the previous
financial year.

Two key projects were undertaken by consultants Cox Inall
Ridgeway during the year, focussing on cultural safety and
communication within the organisation. This work resulted in
an overarching communications strategy which is currently
being implemented by the People and Culture team.

Systems and Support

Based on feedback from employees, we reviewed our
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) to identify a better
service for our people. Our new provider is local to
Mount Isa and offers specialist one-on-one Indigenous
counselling in a range of settings to suit the individual.

To better support our end-to-end HR processes, we have
identified an integrated cloud based system that will
provide a one-stop-shop for all things related to taking
care of our people. From recruitment and onboarding, to a
learning management system, remuneration and benefits,
and payroll, the system will streamline our processes, and
support people to shine in their roles.

Professional Development

Our commitment to providing a holistic and integrated
model of care to Indigenous Australians is supported
by keeping our employees up to date with current
industry best practices through ongoing professional
development. This is essential for capacity building

and succession planning. We have invested heavily in
professional development during the 2019 financial
year, allocating more than $5,000 towards professional
development for every employee.



Home-grown Expertise

In addition to ongoing professional development, an
important part of pursuing our goal of becoming an
Aboriginal Employer of Choice has been to provide training
and education options to support entry to a career in health.

Our traineeship program offers participants Certificates
Il and IV in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Primary
Health Care. In the next financial year, we will offer a
Certificate Ill in Community Services which provides a
broad knowledge base and is an excellent platform upon
which to build a career in health. We also plan to offer:

e Certificate lll in Business Administration (Medical)
e Certificates lll and IV in fitness
e Bachelor of Nursing

We are exploring ways of attracting experienced workers
with transferable skills who are looking for a change in
career. Gidgee Healing provides a supported move into
the health industry, providing a soft entry and framework
for transitioning into the clinical space, through trusted
mentors and professional development.

Three ‘Gidgee Graduates’ completed their traineeship
during the 2019 financial year. There are already 24
people enrolled in Gidgee Healing training for the 2020
financial year.

Above left to right: 'Gidgee Graduates' Cameron Leon, Brodie Germaine
and Janice Irvine have completed their Certificate IV in Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Primary Health Care



Our Partners and
Stakeholders

We work in synergistic relationships with a range of
stakeholder groups to deliver the best possible culturally
appropriate health care for Indigenous communities in
our region. We are proud to work alongside:

e Mount Isa Centre for Rural and Remote Health
(MICRRH)

e Traditional Owner groups

e Mornington Island Health Council

e Doomadgee Health Council

e |ocal Indigenous Health Councils

e Local Government

e Indigenous Community Groups

e Visiting clinicians

e headspace National Youth Mental Health
Foundation

e Various Allied Health professionals

e Injilinji

e Queensland Department of Education

e Young People Ahead (YPA)

Funding

Our work is made possible through funding from
various sources and we gratefully acknowledge
support from:

e Australian Government Department of Health
e Queensland Health

e Australian Government Department of
Social Services

e |nstitute for Urban Indigenous Health

e Australian Government Department of
Prime Minister and Cabinet

e Western Queensland Primary Health Network
e CheckUP Australia

e Queensland Department of Child Safety,
Youth and Women

e Commonwealth Department of Social Services
e Queensland Department of Education
e headspace National Youth Mental Health Foundation



-

e N

e

=T

. Ol =i

-

=

- —
————

. — -
e A S T B e e L .

S remIl

——

—

s T

=—==_=C

ToEs e w SR e 20
- = .

e e

-



The thouqht, planning and Struclures thal
W%m

The Gidgee Wood underpins our way of thinking by ensuring
our ethos is embedded in our strategy, governance structures,
business planning, and systems and processes.
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Corporate Governance

External Structures

Gidgee Healing operates as a public company limited by
guarantee. We are subject to the rules and regulations
of the Corporations Act as set out by the Australian
Securities and Investments Corporation (ASIC). We are
also a registered charity, regulated by the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC).

Importantly, we are also Community Controlled. This
means that the community can have a say in how the
organisation is governed, and that eligible members can
participate in general meetings, nominate as candidates
for the Board, and serve as Directors.

Board and Management

The overall control and oversight of Gidgee Healing

is the responsibility of the Board, which sets the
strategic direction and performance targets, and
monitors progress towards achieving those targets.
Operational responsibility for performance is delegated
to management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Board is comprised of up to seven Elected Directors
chosen by the members, and up to two Skills-Based
Directors appointed by the Elected Directors. Each
Director brings specific skills and expertise that support
the organisation’s strategic direction and goals. The Board
is well-placed to provide the leadership and governance
oversight needed by the organisation.

Looking Forward

Governance Charter

During the year, the Board maintained a formal governance
charter that clearly defines and articulates our governance
practices, systems and processes. The charter ensures our
good governance practices continue consistently beyond
the terms of the current Directors and management.

Clinical Governance

An effective clinical governance framework is fundamental
to providing a safe and consistent health service. While
we have always practised good clinical governance as a
component of our corporate governance, the development
of a formal clinical governance framework has been a
critical step in our evolution as a health service provider.

In the context of a rapidly growing, large, and
geographically diverse organisation, the framework
provides structure and consistency around the policies,
procedures, tools and processes necessary to support the
delivery of health services that are culturally appropriate,
safe, effective, integrated, high quality and continuously
improving. The framework is structured with a focus on
accountability at each location, overseen by the Clinical
Governance Committee, with ultimate accountability
falling to the Board of Directors. Importantly, our approach
to clinical governance has been developed specifically for
our holistic, wrap-around model of care.

In the shifting landscape of the health care sector, along with the Community
Controlled aspects of our organisation, a robust governance framework remains

critical to our operation and success.

The Board will continue to:

e Ensure our governance framework is robust and reflects best practice in
Community Controlled organisations as well as our legislative environments

Ensure we have the right skills and knowledge to govern effectively and

remain relevant to our communities

Ensure we have the right systems in place to ensure business continuity,
should any director or senior manager leave the organisation




Risk
Management

During the year, Gidgee Healing maintained its systematic
approach to identifying, mitigating and managing risk by
updating the Risk Management Framework as new risks
are identified. Staff across the organisation continue to
track and manage risks on a day-to-day basis under the
oversight of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Board.

SO 9000 and
Other Quality
Systems

As we continue to develop our services and find better
ways to provide a consistent, high quality health

care experience for our patients, we are conscious of
maintaining a cycle of continuous improvement for our
quality management systems. During the period, we
maintained our ISO 9001 accreditation and AGPAL
accreditation for the Pioneer clinic and achieved
accreditation for the Normanton and Burke Street Primary
Health Care centres. Our quality management system

is facilitated through LOGIQC safety, quality and risk
management software which is developed specifically for
the health care sector.



Our

Actions

The services and
programs thal
we deliver

The Gidgee Wood is
embodied in our actions by
ensuring our care model

is driven by community,
delivering culturally safe,
holistic primary healthcare
that comes from a place of
promoting wellness rather
than ‘fixing’ symptoms or
ailments in isolation.



Health Services

As Gidgee Healing grows and evolves, we are continually
seeking to better serve our communities in ways that
are meaningful, culturally appropriate, and that deliver
improved health outcomes for Indigenous Australians.

Over the last financial year, we have consolidated our
presence in the Lower Gulf communities, including a
transition of services and funding on Mornington Island
from the Hospital Health Service to Gidgee Healing's
Community Controlled model of Primary Health Care.

We have redoubled our efforts in applying best practices
in quality, safety, and clinical governance in all our centres
and we are thrilled to have achieved AGPAL accreditation
for the Burke Street and Normanton Primary health care
Centres during the period.

Service Integration

We have been working hard to refine our service delivery
model to embody our vision of truly integrated care. In
doing so, we have broken down silos that previously
existed, both in our organisational structure and our
service delivery model. This is most notably apparent

in our provision of allied health services, which is now
embedded within our primary health care clinics. We
have specialist teams who work across our primary
health clinics to ensure a holistic approach to health care.

Our Service Delivery Teams

MOUNT ISA PRIMARY
HEALTH CARE CENTRES

As part of our push towards greater integration, we have
brought our Burke Street and Pioneer clinics under a
single management structure. This has helped to improve
continuity of service, provide more consistency in health
practitioners, and move our primary health care practices
towards a more holistic and comprehensive model.

During the period we strengthened our focus on chronic
disease management, reinvigorating our weekly ‘chronic
disease days’. Once a week, we gather an integrated
team in one place so that our patients have all the health
professionals they need together in one location at the
same time. This makes it easier to access everything
required for complex chronic diseases such as diabetes,
kidney disease, cardiovascular disease, etc.

LOWER GULF PRIMARY
HEALTH CARE CENTRES

We have been working hard to increase engagement with
communities across the Lower Gulf region. The main aim has
been to encourage people to become more proactive about
their health care. As a result, we have seen a significant
rise in active patient numbers in our clinics, resulting in 715
health assessment and chronic disease management plans.
Gidgee Healing continues to provide holistic care for acute
health conditions and is also working towards a greater
focus on early intervention and preventative medicine.

We have now successfully transitioned Mornington Island
health services and associated funding to the Community
Controlled model. This became effective in January 2019,
making Gidgee Healing responsible for the provision of all
community health services on Mornington Island. With the
reallocation of funding, we have been able to double the
number of staff to better serve the local community.

Gidgee is continuing to build a service model that represents
the unigue health needs and desired outcomes of each
of the communities we serve. We are working with local
Health Councils, Shire Councils and communities in
Doomadgee, Mornington Island, and Normanton to better
understand what people are looking for from their health
service. We will model each primary health care centre
and service on this information.

RHD Screening

Over the last financial year, Gidgee Healing has conducted
targeted screening for rheumatic heart disease (RHD) in
Mornington Island and Doomadgee. Australia has one of
the highest rates of acute rheumatic fever (ARF) and RHD
in the world. Indigenous people are up to eight times more
likely than other groups to be hospitalised and nearly 20
times as likely to die from this disease. Symptoms can go
unnoticed for years but have serious implications when
left untreated. Our screening program means that we can
provide ongoing treatment to significantly improve quality of
life and increase life expectancy.



NUKAL MURRA

The Nukal Murra (‘plenty hands’) alliance was
formed in 2018 to deliver Integrated Team
Care (ITC) across the region. ITC arrangements
aim to work with Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people with chronic health issues

to help them to manage their conditions and
improve health outcomes by coordinating care
plans with health service providers. The Nukal
Murra alliance is responsible for delivering ITC
services throughout the region and is funded
by the Western Queensland Primary Health
network (WQPHN) under the Indigenous
Australians’ Health Programme (IAHP).

In our first full reporting period since
commencing operation, the Nukal Murra team
has continued to work closely with the local
Renal Health Unit team to provide a timely
transport service for clients to travel to and
from their weekly dialysis appointments. The
team was recognised at the opening of the
Renal Unit transition from Townsville Hospital
and Health Service during National Kidney
Week in April, where the entire Nukal Murra
team was in attendance.

While the service is based in Mount Isa, the
team regularly visits communities outside
our core service area to raise awareness of
the service. Over the financial year, 1,017
referrals to Nuka Murra were received from
across the region.

REGIONAL ALLIED HEALTH SERVICES

Since launching Allied Health Services in October 2017,
this element of our offering has undergone an iterative

process to identify the best possible way to embed the

services across our entire health portfolio. Gidgee Healing
Allied Health services aim to:

e Listen to and address the needs of community

e Stay connected and engaged with community
and its stakeholders

e Provide access to equitable, sustainable, culturally
appropriate, and consistent Allied Health Services

e Provide household and social support for clients
wanting to keep their independence and improve
their quality of life

The organisational restructure of Gidgee Healing during
the reporting period has removed our previous siloed
approach to providing these services, so that our allied
health professionals are working side-by-side with
primary health care workers and Aboriginal health
workers to provide truly integrated care. Clients are
referred to Allied Health based on the outcome of their
Team Care Arrangement and Aboriginal Health Checks.
This helps to promote early intervention and prevention,
rather than a reactive approach. Since integrating Allied
Health with Primary Health Care, the uptake of allied
health services has increased by 60%.

Service delivery for Allied Health in the Lower Gulf
continues to be impacted by limited resources —

both infrastructure and staffing — and local factors,
although these are slowly showing improvement. With
new team members on board we anticipate our service
delivery will increase, particularly in the Mount Isa clinics.
We are currently exploring opportunities for reducing
the number of ‘no shows’ at scheduled appointments
and increasing Medicare billing for Allied Health.

Our Allied Health Services include Physiotherapy,
Dietetics, Exercise Physiology, Speech Pathology,
Podiatry, Occupational Therapy, and Mental Health Social
Work. In May 2019, the Mental Health Co-ordinator role
commenced transitioning from Health Services to the
Human Services portfolio, to inform an integrated Social
and Emotional Wellbeing approach.



CHILD MATERNAL HEALTH

Our Child and Maternal Health team is a key focal point
between health and human services. Our integrated
approach to care places family squarely at the heart of
all that we do. This team works across the portfolios

to help families build a network that supports kids
throughout their development journey. The goal is to
integrate early childhood services from neo-natal care
to play group, day care, and kindy, with education and
health services to inform and support families around
the early intervention and treatment of chronic disease,
developmental and learning disabilities, and behavioural
and mental health issues.

Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder

Gidgee Healing has been working in collaboration with
Griffith University’s Menzie's Institute to co-create a
culturally appropriate, flexible solution to assessing
child neurodevelopment in our communities. The
Yapatjarrathati project is funded by a grant from the
Australian Government Department of Health. It centres
on using primary health care as the central point of
coordination for assessment, and supports practitioners
in the use of a co-designed, tiered assessment

process to quickly identify and support children who
are struggling. The project provides fully-funded tele-
mentoring to support practitioners when assessing and
managing child neurodevelopmental. Tele-mentoring is
provided by a clinical psychologist, speech pathologist,
and/or paediatrician.

Gidgee Healing agreed to provide a base in Mount Isa for
the Yapatjarrathati assessment services. Dr Marjad Page
(GP) and Aunty Karen West (Elder and Aboriginal Health
Worker) helped coordinate and trial the first stage of
implementing the tiered assessments.

During the trial period, Dr Page and the Family Health
Team decided to embed part of the neurodevelopmental
assessment into the Aboriginal Health Check. This provided
an opportunity to identify children who may be at risk of
prenatal alcohol exposure, or other neurodevelopmental,
socio-emotional, mental health, chronic health, and/or
medical problems, and potentially in need of support. The
Health Check was expanded to follow evidence-based
guidelines and parts of the tiered assessment process were
integrated with the Health Check.

As of 30 June 2019, 22 children ranging in age from one
month to 13 years had completed the new Health Check.

Healthy Skin Project

The Healthy Skin Project, previously coordinated by the
North West HHS, has now transitioned to the ACCHO
model and sits with Gidgee's Child and Family Health
team. The intent of the Healthy Skin program is to
deliver community based prevention, early detection
and treatment of pathogens causing skin infections in
our communities.

The program aims to:

e Increase access to opportunistic screening for
vulnerable client groups, including contact tracing
and providing support and education for clients and
families requiring ongoing treatments and follow-up

e Improve the prevention, education and early
detection of skin infections by developing community
relevant information and local education strategies
aimed at healthy hygiene in the home, school and
community settings

e Improve the responsiveness of the health system by
providing a range of educational and training activities
to patients, families and the health workforce in rural
and remote settings with limited access to skin infection

e Reduce the current burden of disease associated with
skin related infections experienced by Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people

Deadly Ears

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children currently
have one of the highest rates of otitis media—or middle
ear disease—in the world. Deadly Ears is a Queensland
Health program focussing on reducing the rates and
impacts of middle ear disease and conductive hearing
loss for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children
across Queensland. We have been working with the
program to streamline the screening processes and
connect with kids in the communities in our service
delivery area. There is evidence that some children are
missing out on access to this important program and
falling through the cracks. This is largely due to the
focus on acute care that has been prevalent in remote
communities to date.

Our partnership with Deadly Ears has seen significant
work occur in our remote Primary Health Care centres,
with our teams working collaboratively to implement
screening, promotion, treatment and to support the
delivery of surgical intervention in our communities.



PHARMACY PROJECT

During the reporting period, Gidgee Healing
has been involved in a project supporting the
integration of a pharmacist within Gidgee
Healing's Health Services portfolio. The
Integrating Pharmacists within Aboriginal
Community Controlled Health Services to
Improve Chronic Disease Management
(IPAC) study is a collaborative partnership
between James Cook University (JCU), the
National Aboriginal Community Controlled
Health Organisation (NACCHO), and the
Pharmaceutical Society of Australia (PSA). It
aims to improve chronic disease outcomes by
integrating a pharmacist into the primary health
service. The project was modelled on existing
evidence supporting the role of a practice

pharmacist co-located with clinics to enhance
chronic disease management as well as quality
use of medicines.

A pharmacist was embedded within our
primary health care team to help improve
medication-related practices across the whole
Gidgee Healing footprint. The pharmacist
travelled to all our sites to engage and support
clients and staff with regards to medication
management, medication adherence, and
education about medication use. The IPAC
study aims to improve prescribing practices
as well as communication between clients,
stakeholders and Gidgee Healing in specific
regard to medications.
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Challenges

Our biggest challenge continues to be the attraction and
retention of clinical staff — especially GPs. Throughout
the year we have been heavily reliant on a locum medical
workforce, which creates a barrier to service continuity
for our communities. As an organisation, we are working
strategically to develop our own ‘home-grown’ health
professionals in our local communities and attract new
graduates to the region. We are creating pathways

to training and employment for local people that will
ultimately build pipelines into health sector professions.

As we grow, we are now facing issues around
infrastructure. From a staffing perspective and the
volume of patients we are now seeing, our facilities are
no longer fit for purpose. We are exploring options for
how we might address this in the immediate future but
also for longer term.
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Future Focus

Moving forward, the next 12 months will be heavily
focussed on creating infrastructure that will better serve
our communities. Specifically, we aim to construct our
own purpose built facility on Mornington Island and
identify a suitable location for our primary health care
clinic in Doomadgee. In Mount Isa, we are exploring
options to consolidate our two clinics in one location to
provide the community with a one-stop-shop for health
and wellness.

We are continuing to build our Aboriginal Health Worker
workforce, which will be fundamental to our model.
During the 2018 financial year, we employed just two
Aboriginal Health Workers. At the time of this report,
Gidgee Healing employs 15. We will continue to build
that workforce, taking on more trainees and creating a
career path within our organisation.

Growing our Aboriginal Health Worker workforce is
fundamental to reorientating our model of care. To be
truly community centred, the care needs to be led by
members of community. We want the first clinician that
our clients see to be — at least 75% of the time — an
Aboriginal Health Worker. This workforce will also take
the lead in case management and care coordination for
chronic disease.
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HuMan
Services

Gidgee Healing's Human Services portfolio was
designed as part of a major realignment of our
service delivery model. It has brought together similar
program and service delivery elements to create a
shared sense of purpose across the portfolio. Family
and community are fundamental to the delivery of
each program and are at the heart of everything we
do in this space. The portfolio is distinct from our
health services and yet intersects with our clinical
teams to foster positive social, physical, and mental
outcomes holistically, in line with our overarching
philosophy of providing truly integrated care.

There is a whole raft of social issues faced by

the communities we serve that are inextricably
linked with overall health outcomes. The Human
Services portfolio works with individuals, families
and communities to build resilience, strength, and
skills. We aim to help people with approaches that
are realistic, sustainable, and interconnected with
physical health outcomes.

The Human Services Portfolio addresses issues
such as:

e Mental health

e Family wellbeing

e Physical and emotional safety

e Social and emotional wellbeing

e Improving meaningful education, training and
employment outcomes

e Food security
e Housing stability and enhancing social inclusion
e Access to required supports and services



New Ways of Working

The Human Services portfolio was formed in April 2019,
and so was only operating for the final three months of
the reporting period. This ramp-up period has focussed
on building solid foundations for the portfolio to get the
fundamentals of service delivery right from the start. It has
been a concentrated phase of discovery and building new
delivery models that are appropriate for our communities.

Considerations during the establishment phase
have included:

e Defining a clear strategy
e Continuous quality improvement

e Agile approaches to iterative service design and
development

e Co-designing programs and services with community

e (Grass roots community engagement on the ground in
communities

e Sourcing the best possible leadership team

e Integration between social and emotional wellbeing
and primary health care

e Clinical Governance

From an operational perspective, grouping these services
together enables development of leaders across the
portfolio. We view all service delivery experts as leaders

in their space. The opportunity for collaboration across
specialisations helps to ensure we have the necessary
workforce capability to meet the needs of the communities
we serve. Bringing a range of skills, knowledge and

experiences also boosts our problem solving capability so
that as a team we are better able to address community
needs and overcome some of the challenges of service
delivery in the context of remote communities.

Activating an integrated, holistic, and community-centred
approach to service delivery maximises the effectiveness
of our internal resources. It also serves to help us to
integrate our programs with other parts of the business,
and ensures a partnership approach with external
community stakeholders. This ensures we maximise
service delivery to the community and are fully armed

to identify gaps and meet some of the challenges that
confront us as we deliver services.

Quality, safety and clinical governance have been key
considerations in the development of delivery models
and will continue to be embedded across the portfolio as
foundational pillars of service delivery. Gidgee Healing's
Clinical Director has oversight of both our service delivery
portfolios to ensure consistency and compliance with our
clinical governance framework.

In May 2019, the Mental Health Co-ordinator commenced
transitioning from Health Services to the Human Services
portfolio, to inform an integrated Social and Emotional
Wellbeing approach to improve mental health outcomes
across our communities.

The scope of this role includes:

e Clinical education

e Co-ordination and triage of people seeking assistance
for social and emotional wellbeing concerns

e Collaborating with GPs, and all service delivery
programs across Gidgee Healing



Some of the programs and services under the
Human Services remit are relatively new to
Gidgee Healing. Some have been delivered
for several years. However, even our longest
running programs have never been offered

as part of a fully integrated human services
portfolio. Full service integration has only
been operational a few months at the time of
reporting, and for ease of reporting, highlights
of individual services and programs are
outlined below.

SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL WELLBEING

Our flagship Social and Emotional Wellbeing program kicked off
at the end of the 2019 financial year. The program was launched
in Mount Isa and partners with the Western Queensland Primary
Health Network (WQPHN). This core suite of services is at the
heart of our entire Human Services portfolio. Gidgee Healing's
Family Wellbeing, Deadly Choices, headspace and Normanton
Recovery and Community Wellbeing Service teams all work in
concert with the Social and Emotional Wellbeing program to deliver
enhanced access and social outcomes across our communities.

The program takes a grass roots approach to working with

our communities to help people get the right support at the
right time, by the right person. Workers are selected based

on their presence in local community and vocation to work in
the health sector. They are already regarded by their mob as
natural mentors and have earned a level of trust that gives them
leverage to support people to engage with the health service
that's right for them.

There are plans in place to expand the program to Normanton
during the 2020 financial year, and hopefully even further afield
in the future.



The Gidgee Healing SEWB strategy has been developed in consultation with
the communities in which we work. It is based on eight domains of social and
emotional wellbeing which overlap, depending on individual needs at a given
point in time. This model is based on the National Strategic Framework for
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples’ Mental Health and Social and
Emotional Wellbeing 2017-2023.






NORMANTON RECOVERY AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SERVICE

Since moving into a new contract with Gidgee Healing as
the sole service provider, the Normanton Recovery and
Community Wellbeing Service (NRCWS) has beenin a

period of change as we transition to a new model of care.

We are passionate about creating a place of healing that
will provide a haven for people to transition successfully
back to their families and communities, and to continue
receiving the aftercare needed for holistic social and
emotional wellbeing.
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Cultural Relevance and Accountability

We believe that culturally appropriate care is fundamental.
Moving forward, a central feature of the NRCWS model of
care will be to provide greater access to cultural activities
and traditional healing modalities. As the model continues
to evolve, we will incorporate the knowledge and insight
of residents of the service, and the wider communities

of the Lower Gulf region to ensure the service remains
effective and maintains relevance to the people we serve.

Fully Integrated Service Delivery

Separate elements of health and well-being do not
occur in isolation. Just as our philosophy is to treat every
individual as a whole person, Gidgee Healing strives

to integrate all that we do, within and across our own
service offering and the broader health services sector.
NRCWS residents enjoy shared care arrangements with
a range of service providers outlined below.

Health and Wellbeing

e Primary Health Care Clinics
e Social and Emotional Wellbeing providers
e Family Wellbeing providers

e Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drugs (ATODs) advisory
services

e Authorised Mental Health Services (AMHS)
e North West Regional Health Service

o Centacare

e Save the Children

Education and Training

e Bynoe
e TAFE

Work Placement and Employment

e Bynoe
e Gulf Labour Hire
e TAFE

e Carpentaria Land Council
e Army Reserve

e Carpentaria Shire Council
e | ocal mining companies
e Local property owners

Wrap Around Services

The NRCWS model now articulates a more
comprehensive range of services that have greater
capacity to meet each person ‘where they are at. Besides
the 20 bed residential facility, the NCRWS service
continuum will develop and maintain a stronger focus on
a holistic, community centred approach, including:

e FEarly intervention, prevention and promotion activities
through ‘soft’ entry points such as regular men'’s and
women'’s groups, yarnin' circles, etc

e Non-residential day programs

e Proactive outreach aftercare support

e Family support programs

e Community prevention and promotion initiatives

As our model continues to mature, we are seeking to
implement local peer support networks and a warm-line
telephone support service. We are also hoping to move
towards transitional housing and support models as

residents move through the process of recovering from
misuse of alcohol and other drugs.




Service Excellence Through Lifelong Learning

The NRCWS model aspires to service excellence by
fostering a lifelong learning environment for both
residents and staff. A skilled workforce is the linchpin to
these aspirations. We currently offer the NRCWS team
regular training, mentoring and supervision opportunities.
Most team members have completed a range of culturally
informed training in programs such as:

e Dadirri (We Al-li)

e Deadly Thinking

e Be Strong

e Staying Strong

e Family Wellbeing

In addition, Gidgee healing has placed a strong emphasis

on providing NRCWS staff with opportunities to
undertake formally credentialed training. This year:

e Six staff graduated with a Certificate IV in
Mental Health (pictured below).

e Two staff members commenced a
Diploma of Counselling

e One staff member commenced a
Diploma in Leadership and Management.

HEADSPACE

Gidgee Healing has been the lead agency for headspace
in Mount Isa since 2014. We are the only service in the
region that delivers a holistic suite of youth focussed
services under one roof. The headspace team includes
mental health clinicians (including clinical lead), care
coordinators, an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island

care coordinator, part time general psychologist, and

GP, as well as community engagement, administrative
support staff and service manager. In addition, there

are three specialist vocational staff members working
collaboratively with the clinical team to support young
people with mental illnesses who are seeking to enter or
remain in education or employment. The headspace team
collaborates across the Human Services portfolio, and
crosses over with the Health Services portfolio, to close
the loop on our wrap-around model for Indigenous youth.

We have continued to build on the success of previous
years, especially in relation to increased engagement and
access facilitated by targeted awareness and education
activities throughout the community. Awareness activities
during key events like Youth Week, headspace Week, and
NAIDOC Week, as well as our weekly coffee cart, create
opportunities for young people to connect and increase
awareness in the broader community. This year has seen
an increase in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander clients,
and overall growth in client numbers across the board.

In an early collaboration across the portfolio and the
community, Gidgee Healing’'s Family Wellbeing and Social
and Emotional Wellbeing programs collaborated with
headspace Mount Isa to deliver the pilot ‘Battle Won'’
program. Facilitated by headspace’s clinical lead, Marcel
Noronha, and partnering with John and Jacinta’'s Doyle's
Three Sons Fitness, the program provides counselling

and general psychological support to young people
participating in Three Sons’ various physical challenges.

In the photo (L-R):

Gerard Broersen — Gallang Place trainer (training service provider), Chris
Ruyg — Wellbeing Manager — Graduate, Stephanie Owens — Activity
Officer — Graduate, Megan Henry — Case Worker — Graduate, Nadine
Thomas — NRCWS Service Manager, Other Graduates not shown in photo:
Owen Richardson — Case Worker, Josephine Ploenges — Case Worker



Young people serviced by age Mount Isa
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Population groups

Aboriginal and Culturally or Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Torres Strait Islander Linguistically Diverse Trans, Intersex, Questioning
(CALD) (LGBTIQ)

Occasions of service provided at headspace Mount Isa




Nature of services Mount Isa

Proportion of occasions of service at headspace Mount Isa
that were groupwork services.

Is not Group OOS

Is Group OOS 4.5% 60
95.5% 1,284
|

BE WELL, LEARN WELL

Gidgee Healing is working in partnership with CheckUP
to deliver Queensland’s Department of Education, Be
well Learn well (BWLW) program. BWLW is an early
intervention program that provides allied health therapy
services to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students
in remote Queensland state schools.

Our work is focussed at Mornington Island and
Doomadgee State Schools, and aims to identify and
address behavioural and learning issues to improve
educational outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander students from Kindergarten to Year 12.

The program brings together education and health
workforces, providing direct therapy support for
students in a school setting, rather than a clinical setting.
This approach is central to the program'’s delivery,
allowing for an integrated workforce of education

and health professionals to respond holistically
and intuitively to the risk factors influencing child
development and schooling outcomes.

The allied health therapy services are delivered at

least twice per term and include speech pathology,
occupational therapy, psychology and clinical psychology.
The program assists teachers to develop strategies for
students with complex needs and empowers parents and
carers in their relationship with the school. During the
2019 financial year the program worked with 41 students
in Doomadgee and 33 students in Mornington Island,
together with their teachers and families.

BWLW is also being delivered in six other remote
state schools across Cape York in partnership with the
Apunipima Cape York Health Council.



Challenges

The breadth and depth of our Human Services portfolio
is enormous. We have been ambitious in our aims for this
suite of services, but we are committed to fulfilling our
goals of a fully realised way of delivering human services
with family at the centre.

Some of the challenges we face in achieving our goals
include making sure our program managers are provided
opportunities to develop the capability to deliver on our
vision. We are working hard to ensure our key people
receive the professional development they need, and are
empowered to make decisions about the direction and
delivery of our programs.

Quality and safety must always underpin everything
that we do. While this is not a challenge in and of itself,
the busy-ness of simply getting services to people
that need them can sometimes turn our attention from
these fundamental elements. During 2019, we have
implemented a range of practices and procedures

to embed quality and safety in the delivery of all our
programs, with a particular focus on preparing further
programs for audit in 2020.

The landscape of funding for Indigenous health and
wellbeing services is complex. While we are committed
to providing a truly integrated model of care, funding
mechanisms are often discrete in their mechanisms

for allocation. We will continue to work to address the
disparity between funding channels and meeting the
needs of our communities.

Future Focus

As we look to the future, we will continue to refine our
understanding of the Human Services portfolio and how it
complements Gidgee Healing’s other service delivery areas.

We are looking forward to expanding our portfolio in
the coming year to include Deadly Choices, as well as
sourcing new business opportunities to address gaps

in services for domestic and family violence, alcohol

and other drugs, and mental health. Our Social and
Emotional Wellbeing services will hopefully be extended
to new communities, and will be further developed as
our flagship program, embedded across all other service
delivery areas.

Our Human Services portfolio is fundamental to the
success of Gidgee Healing as a health service provider.
These programs open up pathways to clinical services in order
to provide truly holistic and integrated care that supports
the unique resiliencies and strengths of all communities.






=

Annual Report /7




Contents

Directors’ Report
Auditor's Independance Declaration

Financial Report

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Directors’ Declaration

Independant Auditor’s Report

52
55

56
56
57
58
59
60

73
74



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Director's Report
For the year ending 30 June 2019

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Services Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019 and auditor's report thereon.

The direciors present iheir repont together with the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Sardcog Lid for the year ended 30 June 2019 and awditors report thifson.

Dirgctors names

The namas of 1he directon in ofice al ary ime during of since tha and of the year are:
Shaun Solomon

bcna Phillips

Michasl Martin

Leann Shaw

Darren Walden

The dresicrs have been in office since the star of the year &5 the dale of this repeet unless olheratse slaled

Short4erm and long-term objectives and strategies
Thee company's short-barm and long-term objectives ane to:

«  Provision of Primary Heallh Care servicas to the in Indigencus community of Mount 153 and the suffounding region
To achieve ks sor-em and leng-term objecives, he company has adoptad the following strategies:

+  Gaining more funding and empiaying mane siall

Principal activities

To carry out the company's Sirabegies and 1o achiave ils shorl-larm andg lang-term objectives, the company angagad in
the follcang principal aclivities during the yaar,

Tha principal acthvity of the company during the financial year was the provision of Primary Health Care sorvices b the
Indigenous cormmunity of Mound 1sa and the surcunding region,

Koy performance indicators

To help evaluate whethar tha activities thi compary esiablished during the yaar have achigved its shortlerm and lang-
term objeciives, he company wses the following key performancs indicalors 1o fMsaaure, analyse and moniar its
pasfonmancn:

Community Teedback and the Qualily of sanvicas provided.

infarmation on direciors

Shaun Soloman Elacted Direcior, Chalrporson

Chuilificlions Graduate Diploma of Indigenous Healih Promaton; Certificala 11l Aboriginal
Primary Health Care

Experignce Fallow, Australian Rural Loadership Foundation: Board Member (Secratary] Young

Pecple Ahasd: Member, Auslrakan Health Promotion Association; Cultural Training
Facilitator, Morth Wast Hospital and Health Servica, James Cook Unbsersity,
Ganaralist Medical Training,



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Director's Report
For the year ending 30 June 2019

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Services Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019 and auditor's report thereon.

Infermaticn on directors {Continued)

Mana Phillips Elecied Dirscicr

Qualifications B. App. Sc. Indigencus Community Management and Devalopmant; Certificate IV
Haalth Promaticn; Cerificate IV Training and Assessmenl; Alcahl ard Dvug
Treabmeni braining; Alcohsl and Drug Basic and Advanced Counselling Skills; Train
ihe Tradner; Domestic and Family Viclence, Adull Child of an Alcoholc: Maental
Haalth First Aid; Certiheata IV Mental Health TAFE Mount Isa; Tracéy Westerman
Cartificats in Mental Health: Sirengths Based Training Approach and Supanvision
Policy and Practice; Rape and Domestic Viclenoe Supéndsion Abordginal OV and
FY case work; Feparing Child Abuse and Neglect and Mandatory Reperting of DV
and FV.

Expifidnci Retingd, Adjunct JOU Moaund 158 Centre for Rural and Femabe Haallh 35 years
Eapanancs working woluntarily in Abonginal organizations.

Michaal Martin Indepandant Dingcior
Chealifications BA, Graduate Diplorna Administration. B Commarnca, FCPA. GAICD.
Exparionce Board Mambar, Top End Health Sersces Board NT: Pariner, MDS Partners

Management Consultancy; Managing Director, Top Hospilal Exaculive
Managerment Consultancy Services; Chasman NT Bulld; Chairman NT

Ramuneralicn Tribumal,
Leann Shaw Elacted Dirgctor
OwiakScations Associate Degree - Indigenous Community Managamaent and Development.

Diploma - Aboriginal Studies; Carificate Nl - Communily Servicas; Uinited Nations
Dipfamacy Training Course; varous courses in Mental Haalth, Alcohol and Doug

Services,

Expedianc Board membar, Young Peopls Ahead; Yaming Circle feclitator; Indigenous
Rehanbilitation Assistance, MICRRH; Formar Project Officer, Anyinginy.

Darren Walden Elected Direcior

Qualifications Hoalih Worker | Supporl Waorker; Tran the Trasner: Safety and Emorgency
Techmician,

Expariafog Youth Worker, injiini Aboriginal and Terres Strait lslander Corporation for Children

and Youlh Senicas; lormer Board Mambar Prescribed Body Corparste Waaryi;
Farmer Board Mamber Norlth Gawalania Aboriginal Conporation Waanyi,

Mietings of directors
Direciors Direciors” mestings
Murmkssr pligiti i Numbar aRended
aftend

Shaun Solomon k| g8
Rara Phillips g g
Michan! Mar:n B )
Leann Shane 9 b
Ciarren Walden ] )
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Director's Report
For the year ending 30 June 2019

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Mount Isa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Services Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2019 and auditor's report thereon.

Membare guaranies
The compary s Incorporated undir the Corponalions Ast 2001 and is § company lemited by guamnies. Il v company b
weound up, the Conabilulion stahes fhal each member ks requiced o consitute bo o mdmurm of $10 sach lowands

meeting any culsiandings and cbiigatons of the company, A1 30 June 2318 th number of members wis 670. The
womibingd tobal amount thal members of the compasy are babls i conbibube If e company i wound ve is 5570

Signed in accordancs with @ resclution of s boand of dirscton.

Direxior, _ﬁr&: — Ié}”{'“’“""‘-’

Shaun Solomon

Michasl Martin

A0 © Novembey "






MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Statement of Profit or Loss and other

Comprehensive Income
For the year ending 30 June 2019

2018
Note 2019 [Restated")
- $
Revenue and ather incoma
20,842, 768

Revarius from grants 3 21, 788577
Ofher revenue @nd ofhar incoma 4 5 F43 ATS 4568 710
_ 2751458 25208470

Less: axpenses

Engloyas benais pepanss £ (17,3000608)  (12.758.121)
Depreciation and amorfisalon sxpanss [T2T B4AE) (540,350}
Travel, accomadation and confarsnce sxpanses (2,130 4B6) (1.701,656)
Medical sarvices and supplies [595.468) [571.548)
Bad & doubtiul dabls = {4
Repairs, manianance & vahitls renning coponses [ 7.835) (7E4.782)
Foant paguenss [BAT, 6ad) (548.358)
Hasdil, legal & consultancy egpenss [T37,605) (BOT B4Z)
HAisspice fees (700,534 ) i1,336,232)
Cithar sxpenses — 4185818y (3345 807)
2T RAR08Ry (22 535.818)
Wet surplus/fdeficil) befora income tax axpanse (301,626 2682 8E0
Iy L eoopendas n - .
Mat surplusiideficit) for the year — 304 BMEY 2687 ES0
Other eamprohaensive incoma for the year = =
Total comprahensive incomeldeficit) —rULER) o ESLE

* For destaits of restatement refar 1o nobe 22

The accompanying rotes foem part of these fnancial satements
eBa



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Statement of Financial Position
For the year ending 30 June 2019

2018
Mate a9 [Restated”)
| 5
Currant asssis
Cash and cash equivalants & 11,003,483 9,685 B0
Recoieables T 2,440,703 1,586,703
Crhatr asaais B 2 400 21,181
Crhear financial assols g : 10,394
Total current assets 13466586 __ 11274048
Hon-current assets
Property, plant and eguipment 10 2.172.720 2,765,433
intangible assols i1 620,73 -
Cithar financial assats g aF 435 E.HE
Tolal nen-current ssdots —theseay 2 THT 483
Total assats 16292479 __ 14,061530
Current llabilities
Payabiles 12 3,055, g 2017 558
Prowviskons 13 530,363 B30, T0Z
Qither liabiities 14 4805735 2820485
Tatal current liakilithas 1 14 _ SEEGFa%
Non=curmgnt Habilities
Provisions 13 4g450 40,240
Tatal non=currend lHabilities —_— 48450 40240
Total Rablikties 829564 ___S706.985
Mt assats _mﬁ .—'EEEI
Equity
Aocumulated sunplus —B05215 ___$.354541

* For detads of restatomanl reder to nola 22



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ending 30 June 2019

Aceumulated
Hola surplus Total egisity
§ $
Balance as at 1 Juby 2017 5,523,800 £.923 800
Reslabomant of pricr year 22 {251 918 (251 Eﬁl‘
Restaled balance as &t 1 July 3017 T -1 - N1 T4 W13 )
Balance as at 1 July 204T L ET1 8B SET1.881
Wit surplus for the year as reported in 2018 financial stalemarils 2,884 TTD 2084 770
Resialamant of prior year 22 30Nty (302.110)
Restated net surplus for the year — B2 660 ____ZE00.660
Total comprehensive incoma for the year AT RO
Balance as at 1 July 2018 8,354 541 8,354,641
Dreficit for the yoae — (301626 (30620
Total comprahensive incoma for the year — (01ea8) _____iHLELE

Balance ag &l 30 June 2013 __Eﬁi-ﬂi M



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ending 30 June 2019

MHote 2018 2018
- §

Cash flow from operating activities

Receipts fram cuslomens 30,205,908 24,9497 362
Payments 1o suppliers and employees (28,958 B00) {21,495 406)
Inforast necehed — 124048 105550
Het cash provided by operating activities 2073388 _ 600815
Cash flow from invesling sctivities

Paymenl fof propady, plant and equipmand (102, 743) {905, 8E0)
Paymant for invesiments : [21.541}
Paymaenl for intangibies [l R —
Nt cash provided by J (used in) investing activities (755,673 [BET 401}
Reconciliation of cash

Cash al beginning of the financial year 9,685,800 7.010,385
Hal increase in cash hald 1217 683 2575415
Cash at and of financial year —il003488 2500000

The accampanying notes fonm par of thase financial statements.,
-8 -



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

HOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fimancial repoet ts & goneral purpose financial repo thal has been prepased in acoordance with the Austrafanr
Chanties and Not-for-profils Comaission Act 2012 and Australian Accounling Slandands - Reduced Disclasure
Requiremants, iInterpretations and other applicabla authorlative proncuncaments of the Australian Accounling
Elandards Board.

Tha financial repar covers Mount sa Aboriginal Commundy Conbroliod Health Services Lid as an Individual entity. Mount
Isa Aboriginal Community Conirolled Heath Services Lid i a company limiled by guarantse, incorporated and domiciied
in Australia. Mour ksa Abordginal Community Conbralied Health Services Ltd is & nob-for-profit entity fior the purposs of
praparineg the financial stabemants.

The financial rapart was approved by the directars as al the date of the dingcions’ rnepart.

Thi follawing are ihe significant accounting policies adopted by tha company in the preparation and presentation of the
financlal ropoet. The accounting policas have been consisiently appliad, unless oihmreise sialed.

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial report
Hisfarical Cost Convantion

Thes financial repart has boen prepared urder the hislorical cost convention, a3 modified by revalualions to fair value for
certain classes of assels and kabilities as described in the accounting pelicies.

(b} Mow and revised sccounting standards effective at 30 June 2015

The company has apphed all new and revised Ausiralian Accounting Siandards that apply to annual reperiing paniods
beginring on or aker 1 July 2018, including AASE 8 Financial Insrurments (AASE 9],

AMASE O replaces AASE 138; Financiad Instruments: Recognition and Measurament. The kiey changes introduced by

AASH 9 in relation 1o (e accounting reatment for financial inslremants include:

#  simplifying thé general classifications of finandal assets inlo those measured al amortised cost and those
raasured ot fair value;

s permilting aniitios 1o imevecably elecl, on inftlal recognition, for gaing and kasses on aguity insiruments not hald for
trading Lo be prasanted in olher comprehensive meoms (OCI1);

#  simplifying the requinamants for embedded dénvatives, including remowing the requirement 1o separabe and
measure cmbedded derivativas at faér value, in relation 1o ambadded denvalives associaled with financial assels
mieasured 8t amonised cosl;

& requiting enites that alect to measune financal liabilites a1 fair value, to present (he portion of the change in fair
value arising from changes in tha antity's own credit fsk i OG0, axcepd when it would creats an “aceaunling
migmalch’;

s indreducing & new model for hedge accounting thal pamits greater Rexibility in the abisty to hedge rsk, particulardy
with respect 1o non-financial ilems; and

= [Inreducing a new ‘expecied cradit loss” impairmant moded (replacing the ncumed kass' impairment maodel of
présious cosuning standand).

Tha company has adopbed AASED from 1 July 2018 and has applied the exemplion in relation to full retrospective

application of AASE 9 and s & resull, the company's comparative infoemalion has nol been resiated o reflect the
raguirernants of the new standard,

The application of AASE % has ot mabarially mpacied the classification and measuremant of the company's financial
assals and fnancial liabilties

Further dalails of the company’s accounling palicias in nelalion (o accounting for financial instrumants under AASE B are
contained in nate 1(g)



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

HOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
€] Revenus

Revanis from grams is recognised in the Statement of Comprebensive Income when i is conlroded. Whan thena ana
conditicns aftached to grant revenue retating o the use of those grants for specific purposes & i3 recognised in the
Staternant of Financlal Positlon as a lablity until such condilions are mel o sarvicos provided,

Al revenue B slaled ned of the emount of goods and services tax (GST).

(d} Other revenus and olhar intome

Sarvices
P Tram the rendering of services is recognised wupon ihe delery of he senvice to the cuskemarns.

Indarest
Intargst revanue is maasured in accordance with the effective interes] mathod

AN revanue s measured net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

&) Unexpended grants

Thie comparny recesas grant manies o fund projects sithar for contracled periods of time of for specific projects
imespective of the pedod of lime feguired 1o compiale those projects. I is the policy of the company 10 theal grant
monies a5 unexpanded grants in the Statement of Financial Position whene the company is contrasclually obligated 1o
provide e sericss in & subsaguent financial peviod (o whoen the grant is recahsed of in (e case of apacific project
grants whare the projact has nol been complated.

(1) b fax

Mo provision Tor income 1ax has been raised as the comparty is axsmgl from income fax under Division S0 of the Incams
Tax Assasiment A 1RO7.

{g) Financial instrurmants

Imitial recogniion G0 measuremgnl

Financial assats and financlal liabilites are recognised when the company becomes B panty o ihe contraciual provisions
of the insirument. For financial assals. ihs i equivalent o the date that the company comimits itsell 1o either tha
purchass or sale of the assat {i.o. trade dade acoounting is adopled).

Financial instnaments arg nitially maasured al fair value adjiusiad for iransaction costs, excepd whers the instrumend is
classified as tair valua through profit or loss, in which case transaclion costs are immediabaly recognised B8 Opansas in
prafit or loss.

Classilfication of fnancial seosis

Financial assets recogrised by the company are subsequently measured in their entinaty at eiher amortised cost or fair
LU

Classifioption of fnancia! Rabivtees

All othar fnancial liabisSes recognised by the company are subseguently measured al amorised cosl.

Trade and oiher recaivabias

Trade and alher receivables srise from the company’s iransactions with its cusiomers and ang nonmally setfled within 30
danys.



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
@) Financial instrumaents [Continuad)

Consistend with both the company's business model for managing ihe financial assets and the contraciual cash Now
characiarislics of the assels, irade and olhar recaivables am subsequantly measured M amorised cost.

impairmant of foanciad assals

The foliowing financial assels ane lesled for imnpadrment by applying the ‘expected crech loss’ iripairmel moael:

{a) debl instruments measursd al amotised cosl,

(b} debt instfuments classified al fair value through other comprehéngie income; and

(g} receivables from conbracts with customers and coniract assels.

The company applies the simplified approach under AASE $ 1o measuring the allowance for crodit losses for both
recoivables from conlracts with customers and coniract assats. Linder the AASE B simplified approach. iha comparry
ﬂﬂh‘n‘imlhﬂalhﬂﬁﬂhﬁﬂdﬂlmhWanmﬂm}wmﬂumWh
basis of the Iifetime expected credi losses of the financial assal. Lifetime expected credil losses represant the expacied
eredil loases thal am expecied (o resull from delaull events aver (he expecied iife of (ha financial assal

The company assumes that the credil risk on a Snancial instrurent has intreased significantly since inilial recognisian
when contractua! paymenis ane mane than 30 days pasl dug,

{h] Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash gnd cash equivalents include cash on hand and al banks, shan-le deposits wilh an original maturity of three
months o less held al call with financial institutions, and bank overdrafts. Bank ovardrafts ame shoeen within bormowings in
currand liabilities in the statement of financial position,

(i) Preperty, plant and aquipmant

Each class of planl and squipmenl is measuned al cosl of tair valus less, whers applcable, any sccumulalsd
depreciation and any actumulated impairment losses.

Plant and equipment is brought fo acoount o cost for ingividual items ower 52,000,
Doprocindion
Land is not depreciated, The depreciable amount of all ather property, plant and equipment is depreciabed cver thikse

estimated useful lves commencng from the time the asset i3 held avaliable for use, consistent with tha estimaled
consumplion of the soonomic benefils ambodied in the asset.

Leadahold improvemants ara deprécialed gwved thi sharisr of aithar e unexpined pamcd of the lase or the estimaled
wselul lives of the improsements

Class of fixed asset Dwpreciation rates Dapreciation basis
Leasahald improvaments Al cosl 10 - 20%: Saraight line
Plant and equipment at cost 10 - 30% Straight ling
Molor vehicles al codl 125 - 26% Steaight ling

(i) Intangible assets

IT saftware deveigpmant cosls

Costs incurred in develaping IT software are initially recognised as an asset, and are subsequently amortised over their
estimated usaful lves commaencing from the time the asset s avalable for yse. The amortisation methed applhed to an
imlangitle assel s consieient wilh the eglimaled consumgtion of economic benefits of ihe assel. Subsequent Lo inilial
recagnition, IT softwane development cosis recognised as an intangible asset ang measuned al cost, less accurmulated
amortisation and any accusmulabed impainment IoESeE,



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

MNOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

(&) Inpairmant of non-financial assets

Gooadwil, intangible assets nol yed ready for use and intangible assets with indefinite usehul lves ane ot subject 1o
amoriisation and are herefons tasted annualy for impairmeand, or mone Trequantly if gwas or changes In circumstances
indicabe that they might be impained.

For impaimmont assessmant purposes, assets ana gonerally grouped at the lewest levals for which thane are largely
indnpendent cash fiows 'cash ganerating units’). Accordingly, most assets arg besbed for impairment al the cash-
genarating unit level. Because il doas nol generate cash Nows incependently of othor assels o groups of assels,
goodwill s alocated 4o tha cash ganarating unit or units thal ane expached 1o benef rom the synergies arging from thi
busingess combination thal gave rigae (o the gaodwill.

Assots other than goodwed], intangible assets net yal ready for use and ntangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
assessnd for impainment whangver events or circumslancas arss thal indicale ihe assot may be impared

A Empairmaont 988 i recognised when [he camying amounl of an assel or cash ganerating unit exceads the assels of
cash generating unit's recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an assel or cash generating wnit is defined as the
highar of its fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use (where ‘value in use’ is datermined as the present value of tha
futurs cash Sows expected 1o be dasived from an assel or cash-ganarating unil),

Impairment losses in respact of individual #386ls are recognised immediately in proft or loss wnless the assel is
measursd al A revalupd amaunt, in which case the impaiment loss is treated a5 a revalualion decreasa and is
recognisad in other ceenprehansive incoma 1o the extent That & does not excesd the amount in the revaluation surplus fer
the same class of asset. kmpairment osses in respect of cash genarating units ane allocated first agains! ihe camying
amcanl of any goodwill attribuled 4o (b cash generaling unit with any remainng impaiment loss allocated on a pao raka
basiE b3 the clher assets comprising the relevant cash ganarating unil.

A reversal of an impairment loss for an assel moasured at ooat is recognised in profit of loss. A neversal of an
impairment loss for an assel measured al a revalued amaount is treated 83 B revaluation increase and is recognised in
oiher comprehensive income, excepl b the exten that an impaiment ioss on 1he same class of assel was proviously
recagnised in profit or koss, in which case a reversal of that impainmand loss is also recognised in preSt o loss.

(I} Previspns

Provisions ane recogrised when the company has a legal or consiructive obligation, a8 a result of past events, for which
it &= probable thal an outiiow of seoncmic banalits will nesull and thal outfiaw can be reliably measurad.

The amount recagrised as a provision (s the best eslimate of the sxpenditune required to setlle the presant obligalion &t
tha end of tha reporting perod.

{m) Laases

Laasas are classified ol their inception as either coerating or Bnance leases tased on e economic substanca af the
agreement So a8 b6 neflect the rigks and benefits incidental to canership.

Cparaling Mases
Lease paymenls for oparating leases, where substanially 8l the risks and banefts remain with the lessar, ang
recognised a5 an expanse an a siraight-ling basis ower the erm of the lease.

Lesse incansives recoisad ncer operaling leases are recogrised as a liabdity and amorised on & siraaghl-ine Dasis over
tihe e of i baase ferm.



MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

NOTE 1; STATEMENT OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{n}) Employes banafits

[f] Shor-ferm ermplayes benedl abivgations

Liabilities adising n respect of wages and salares. annual lsave and other amployee banafits (othar than lerminaian
benafis) eupected o be selfied wholly befora baelve months afler the end of the reporting peried are measuned af the
{undiscournted] amounts based on remuneration rates which ane epectsd 10 ba paid when the liability is setiled. The
expecied cosl of shar-lerm ampleyes benalits in the form of compensated absences such as annual keanae is recognised

in the provision for employen benafits, All other shod-term employee banalit obligations are presented as payables in the
stabament of financial posation.

fi} Loreg-ferm emplapme baneli abigatians

The: provision for oher ong-lesm amployes banafits, iIncduding cbligaticns for long service leave and annual leave, which
are ol pxpecied 1o be setiled wholly belone tweba months aftar the end of the reporling pesicd, ane maasured al tha
prasent value of the estimated future cash outfiow (o be made in respect of the services provided by employees up o the
reporting dabe. Expected fulure paymants incorporate anlicipalad fidure wage and salary levels, durations of sendice and
amployes umover, and are discounted al rates detenmined by reference o market yields al the end of the reparting
peradd 0N govermiment bonds that are dengminated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid. Any
remeasunements fof changes in assumplions of cbligations tor other long-lerm empioyee benafits are recognised in
prodit or koss inthe pariods in which the change ooours.

Ciibar Iong-tesrm employes benefil obligations ane presenied as currend liabilities: in the siademend of financial posilion i
thix company does ol have an wneondilional right to dalier setilement for af least tweboe months after he neparting date,

regardiess of when the actual setllement is expected o ocour. All ofher lpng-term employes benedit obligations anp
praganed as non-current liabilities in the stalemaent of financial position.

(i) Ratiramand bonedl chilgaions
Dwfined contrbiution swpevanmuaiion plan

Thea compary makes suparannuation contributions to the employee's defined conlribulion superannualion plan of chie
in respect of emploges senices rendered during the year, These suparannuation contributions ane recognised as an
axpensa in the same perod when the relaed empioyes Serdioes an recened. The company’s oblsgalion with raspest o
ermployas’s defined contributions entiiemants is limited to its cbligation for any unpaid Superannuation guaranlss
coniributions af the end of the reporing perod. All obligations for unpaid supsrannuation guaranios confributions are
raasurad af the (undiscounied) amounts expected o be paid when the ooligalion i settled and are prosenbad & CuEmam
linbilities im (e slalsmant of inancial posibon.

(o) Goods and services tax (G5T)

Ravinues, expensss and purchased assets ane recogrised net of the amound of GST, eacept whene the amount of GST
incurred Is nol recoverable from the Tax Office. In these circumstancos thea GST & meopnised B8 pan of tha cosl of
acquisition of ihe assel of as pan of an fem of the expenss, Receivables and payables in the slalement of fnancial

position are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash figwrs are presenied in the slaement of cash fows on a Jrots Basis, exsept for tha GST component of imvesting
and financing acthvities, which are disclosed as operaling cash flows,

{p] Comparatives

¥Where necessary, comparatve information has been redassified and repositioned Tor consisbency wilh curment yaar
disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Econamic depandence

Mount Isa Abonginal Community Controliod Health Services Lid is dependent on the Deparimants of both the Siaie and
Commonwealth Governmants Tor the majority of [is revenee used 10 oparate Thi business. Al the dale of this report, the
Board of Direclors has reason o balove these Deparimants will soninue 1o support Mou 188 Aboriginal Comminity
Controllied Healh Senvices Lid,

MOTE 2: ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The AASE has issued & rumber of new and amended Accounting Standands and Inkerpratations thal havee mandatory
applicatian dabes for fulung repaing periods, some of which ane relevant o the company. The company has decided nol
b ety adopl any of these new and amended proncuncemants. The company's assessment of the new and amended
profouncamants That are relevant o the company bl applicabls in lulune reporting periods is set out below,

AASD 16: Leazes (mpplicabile for annual reporting periods commancing an or after 1 January 20741

AASHE 18 will replace AASE 117: Leases and inlroduces 8 single lesses accounting model ihal will require a lesses 1o
racognise right-of-uss asseds and lease Rabilites for all leases with & term of more than 12 months, unkbss the underying
assel is of low value, Right-of-use pesels ane inilially maasured &l their oost and leade labilities s inftially massured on
8 prosent value basis, Subsagquent b initlal recognilion:

Right-of.use assals are actounied for on a similar basis o non-financial assels, whareky the right-ol-use assel is
accouanbed for in accondance with a cost model unless the undarying assel i accounied for on & revaluation basis,
in which casa if the underying Bssol is:

i, ivestment propery, the lesses applies the fair value moded in AASE 140; nvestment Property to the right-of-
use asasl; or

il. propery, plant or equipment, the lessee can slect 1o apply the revaluation model in ARSE 116: Propary, Plant
and Equipment ko all of the right-of-use assels thal relabe b that class of property, pland and squipmant; and

it} lease liabiies are accouwnbed for on a Similar basks as olher inancial labiities, whenety inferes! aupense i
recognised in respect of the Bability and the camying amaunt of the Rabiily is reduced o raflect lease paymonts
made

AASE 18 substantially carmes forwand ths lessor accounting requinemaents in AASE 117, Agcordingly, under AASE 16 a
lesscs would continue 1o classily ils leases as oparaling loases or Snance leases subject 1o whather the lease transfers
i Thin Iessea subsiantialy all of the risks and rowands ncidanial ip ownsrship of the underdying assat, and would aosounl
far @ach bype of lease in 8 manner consistent with e curment approach under AASE 117

Thue direciors of the compary has not yel determined the likely impact of the initial application of AASE 16 on s financial
slalpments.

AASE 1038 Income of Nod-for-Prafit Entities, AASE J016-T: Amendmends o Australian Accounting Standands -
Defarral of AASE 15 for Noi-for-Profit Entities and 4458 2016-8; Amendments fo Awrsiralian Accounting
Standards — Ausirailan Implementation Guidance for Nof-for-Prafil Entities {applicalde for anmual reporting
[periods commencing on or after 1 January 207141

AASE 10508 replaces the mcoms recognilicn requirements in AASE 1004: Conlributons applicabla 1o paivals seclor nol-
for-profil antites with & model based on the principles of AASE 15 Revanue from Contracts with Cusfomars.
Consequently, AASE 1058 requires privalo sector nol-for-profit entities 1o recognise all revanue from contracts with
cusicamars when thi related performance obligations ane salisfied, Frespective of whethar the wiimate benaficiany of the
goods o anrvices provided by The nol-for-profit éntity ts the grantsr of the funds or anciber antity, An agreemend involving
& rol-for-profil eniity woukd ba cassilied 85 8 conlrsct with & cusiomer if the agreament:

(8] creates enforcaabl ights and oblgations betwesn (he partes; and

[ kdudﬁsammubvmnmthf-pmmamhyuumruuwd oF servica thad ks sulficienily spacific for the enlily fo
determing when the obligaticn i satishied

For canfracts wath customers that comprise & donabion component. AASE 1058 requires such componsnis o be teated
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending 30 June 2019

NOTE 2: ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

ag part of the performance obligation{s) unless the enlity can demonsirate that companent is nol relaled ko The promised
QoOdS OF SEnicEs,

When an arrangement does nol meed the crilera for & contract with a customar, the inflows ane aceounted for in
aocormanca wilth AASE 1058, which requines:

(@) the assed received by the nal-for-profit entity to be acoounted far in accordance with the applicable Ausiralian
Aocounling Standard; and

(b} any difference between the consideration fivan for the assed and its fair walue 1o ba recognised In accordance with
its substance (such a3 a contrac liability, a financial inglrement and'or a contribution by ownera), and 8y reskiual
aimoiant recognised as inoomss.

However, AASE 2018-8 pronvides a lemporany opticn for nod-for-profil entifies 1o nol apply the fair valua initial
measunement reguirements for ight-of-use assets aming under leases with significantly belos-market tanms and
conditions principally b3 &nable the antity to further il objectives. Elacting lo inially measure such right-ol-use assats al
ool raiher Bhan lair value has the cormespanding afect of reducing the amount of incoime recognised by the enlity wnder
AASE 1058,

AASE 1058 also permita & nol-lor-profil anlity io recogniss wolunbaser services a5 an assel OF xpenss (A appicabsa) ard

arry redated contributions by Owners or feévenee as an accounting policy chtica, prowvided that the fair vales of the
services can be maasuned rellably

AASE 15 will provide (excepl in relation 1o some specific axceplions, such as ease conbracts and insurance conbracts) a

singla source of actounting reguirernants lor all contracts with customers, therety replacing all current accounting

pronouncamants on evanes, The core prnciphs of AA58 15 is thal an entity recognises ravanue 1o depict the transder of
goods of sarvices i 8 cusiomar in an amount that reflacts the consideration Lo which the entity expects o be

anditied i axchangs for those goods of servioss. To give effect to This principle, AASE 15 requires the adoption of the
following S-step model:

dentify the contrasi(s) with a cusiomer;

identity the performance cbligations wunder the conract{s);

diFlmnming the ransaction prica;

allocate the transaction pricé io the perormance obligations under tha contracis ) and

retognise evenue when (or as) the antity safisfies the performance obligalions.

AASE 1058, AASE 15, and the applicable amending standands, mandatorily apply 1o annwal repoing periods

commancing an o aher 1 January 2019, and will ba first applied by the Groug in the financial year commencing 1 July
2018,

Tha direcicrs of the company has nal yel determined The likety impact of the indlial application of AASE 1058 on its
fnancial stalaments.

th & b =
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For the year ending 30 June 2019

HOTE 3: REVENUE FROM GRANTS

Revenue lrom granis
- Stabe | federal govemmenl granis
= Privabe grants

MOTE 4: OTHER REVENLUE AND OTHER INCOME

Intarasl income
Madicana recaipts
Othar rervres i

HOTE &: HET SURPLUS
Mt surplus has been delemined albar:

Empioyes benefil expense
- Salaries and wapes

- Suparannuation

« hadical fees - Locum

- hadical fees - Contracior
- Cithar

WOTE &: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Cash al bank

NOTE 7: RECEIVABLES

CURREMNT
Trade recehables
Other recaivablas

MOTE 8: OTHER ASSETS

CURRENT
Prepaymants

ABN:96 130 300 355

2049 2018
] 1
20,542 B9T 1B 225,721
— 1255800 _ 41T
L A\ 1~ ¥ 3L
124, 048 106, 457
3,058 307 287831
256250 15RO
5742878 4 71
11,539 483 B014,8945
1,000,618 T332
2.850.139 1,735,105
BTS BE1 1,154,924
1 zgi EE 1
17,305 808 12,759,121
i 50
11003433 ___ 9685750
—l02E00 2505 500
2,100 442 1,452 872
240,281 103831
b Tl e——i
———  e———0
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AL 2018
5 5

HOTE 9: OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS
CURRENT
Financial aisels measured 8l amonised cosd
Tarm deposits [lerm > 3 months < 12 months) : i
WO CLURRENT
Financial assels measuned af amorfised oosd
Tarm deposits (ierm > 12 maonihs) ———  e———
ROTE 10; PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold improvaments
Al east 2543870 2.943,9M
Accumiilated depreciation —iLOT2458 ___ (685830)

—LET1512 2258103
Plant and squipmant
Plant and aguipmend al cost aE0, 184 57434
hocumulated depreciation —(TATS1Q) 359044}

212682 288 75

habar vishicies al cosl 25,605 B26,605
Accumulaied deprecalion — (BB DE0) [T17.558)

—Bagd4s 200006
Total plant and squipment — apigF ___ SO7T.30
Tedal propesty, plant and eguipment — Ll el GEA3
Reconcillations
Reconcillation of he carying amounts of propety, plant and equipmant o the
beginning and and of the curent financial year
Lossahohd improvements
Dptrniing Casrryirg amaouni 2258132 1.911.7211
Additicns - 712,204
Depreciation expense —BEERD) (365 .883)
Closing cammying amaunt Sl kLS
Piant and aquipmen
Cipaning camying amount 208298 328270
Additions 102, 744 20,047
Deprecialion axpense — (188387 (10022}
Malor vanicies
Cipening coarmying amouni 200,008 184 978
faditions - 103,518
Dapracation axpenss —ip0dfly (54,488
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Notes to Financial Statements

For the year ending 30 June 2019

MOTE 11: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Softwane al cost
Accumulated amartisation and impairment

Reconciliations

Recancdiation of the camying amounts of intangible assels at the beginning and end

of the current financial year

Software &t cosl
Opening balance
Additions
Armarisalion
Closing balance

MOTE 12: PAYABLES

CLURREMT

Unsecwad Yabifies

Teaa croditons

GST payable

Employmaent related payables
Accrped expensas

NOTE 13: PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Employen benalils

HOM CLURRENT
Ermglayon baralits

MHOTE "14: OTHER LIABILITIES

CLIRRENT

Unespanded grants
Granis recébaad N advano

Refer nobe 23 for further dotails unexpended grants.

2019

1,511,182
314,548
736,627

— 08
R X, 120

3,027,385

ABN:96 130 300 355

208

W3, 420
2E2HN
421,872
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2015 2018
¥ ]

HOTE 15: CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit after income tax
Ml semplusdehcil] aftér incom s {301, 508) 2 EBE2 EE
Adjustments and nof-cash tems
Depraciation and amarisation T27 6485 540,353
Changas in cparating assels and Rabilities
(Increase) § dacreasa in recsivables (A4 000 {844 207
{Incraase] / Goacreasa in oifver assals {1,239} a8, 082
increase | (decreasa) in other Eabilities 1777236 582,070
Increass | (decreaga) in payables 1037 488 312,144
Increase | (decrease) in provisions —_—lER g ZRNESE
Cash flows from operating activities L m—Rad1S
HOTE 16: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPEMSATION
Key management parsonnel compendation AR L]

NOTE 17: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

{a) Transactions with key management personnal of the entity or its parant and thalr personally related antities

During the year, an independent skils based director Michaal Martin was paid a tolal of $39.000 plus GST via Tap
Haspital Exocutive Managemand, A balance of $nd remeins as of 30 June 2079 (2018 Enil). This axcludes diractor lseg
and incidental cosls associaied with direclor mealings.

Diring the year, direcior fees of §71,B52 (2018: 547, 340} wirre approved.
Critsar than the abave thees wers /o Iransactions wilh any related anlilies during the year,

HOTE 18: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments
Mam-cancedable operaling leases conlracied for Bt nol capitalised in the financlal

statamants:

Payabia

- riad 1pdar than ons yaar o908 ATl 51238
= lader than one year and not lator than feg years 501,640 153,305

NOTE 18: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There ane no contingen liabilities that have boon incumed by the Company in relation io 2019 or 2018 Financial Yaar.
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HOTE 20: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING DATE

Thare has bean o mattar of circumstance, wheeh has afisen since 30 June 2019 that has significantly affected or may
sigrificantly alect:

{a) the cperations, in inancial years subsequent io 30 June 2019, of the company, of

=1} the resulis of ihass opérations, or
(e} the statle of affairs, in fnancial yeara subseguent lo 30 June 2019, of the company.

HOTE 21: MEMBERS" GLUARANTEE

The company is inconporabed under the Conparalions Act 20071 and is a company limited by guaranlee. If the company is
wound up, tha Constilulion stabes that each member is required o conbribute 16 a maximum of 510 each towards
meeling any cutstandings and obfigations of tha company. Al 30 June 2019 the nembar of mambens was B7. The
combined 1olad amount ihkal members of the company ara liable 10 conbibute il the company is wound up is 360

NOTE 22: ADJUSTMENT TO LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Mounl lsa Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services Lid has been donaded or has consirucied a number of
buildings on Ieasashoki and, or albernativaly made leasehold improvemants to leased premises. N was their intenticn i
ooeupy theds premises for the inilial lease tarm and 1o extand thai tamm fof whal ever oplions were mace available i
tham, Accordingly, the company was wrilting thair leasehold improvements off over the term they inended io sccupy the
promises, which in some cases extended beyond the original lease tenm.  The company has decided thal it is wnlikedy
that they will eocupy the premises bayond the onginal lease lerms and Ihe leasehold improvemants should have, from
inceplion, been written off ovar the ofigingl lease term. As such, the prior pariod have been restated as follows

Qriginal InciDec) Restatod
5 & §

Dpening Balance - 1 July 2017
Balance Shoet
Property, plant and equipment —lELEET  ___251.919) 2399960
Accumulated surplus 5523807 {251.918) 5671881
Total equity —tdB0d Ll __S6TLEST
20 June F018
Balance Sheal
Propesty, plant and eguipment —al0dfe _ (554.000) 2765433
Mot sssats M —W —m
Aocamulaied sUrples — SO0BSTD ____ (554.020) ___ 354541
Total equity —08ST0 530 8334541

Staterment of profif or loss
Dapraciation and amorisaticn axpense _2aagey __ J0gni0 0393

Net surplus for the year ——ghIT0  (302010) 2682580
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For the year ending 30 June 2019

Active grants

Indigeneous Primary Health Care
Burke St rehabilitation (funded thru IPHC)
New Directions Expansion

IPHC transition

Connected Beginnings

Diabetes Collaboration

Quality Improvement Incentive
Nukal Murra

Clinic Care Coordination
Mornington Island Capital Works
Social and Emotional Wellbeing
Be Well Learn Well

Normanton

Mens Health (Movember)
Tackling Smoking - IUIH

STI - Qld Health

Pioneer - Qld Health recurrent
Family Well Being

IPS trial (mental health)
Headspace - Recurrent
Headspace - NMhCAF / SDF
Headspace - c/fwd approvals

Headspace - Other

Inactive grants

Tackling Smoking - IUIH 2015/16

Tackling Smoking - Dept of Health 2015/16
Tackling Smoking - Recurrent 2013/14
Tackling Smoking - Marketing 2013/14

Total

*Deficits cannot be carried forward

ABN:96 130 300 355

$ $ $ $ $ $
- 11,647,965 878,942  (14,733,513) (2,206,606) -
334 - - (334) - -
115,799 1,423,486 - (1,074,712) 464,573 464,573
; ; - (30,206) (30,206) -
108,194 250,000 - (90,304) 267,890 267,890
20,876 - - (20,876) ; -
- - - (2,637) (2,637) -
- 280,000 384,786 (809,957) (145,171) -
83,044 130,700 - (30,993) 182,751 182,751
303,406 - - (59,104) 244,302
311,832 183,376 (90) (330,358) 164,760 164,760
- 458,348 51,088 (304,542) 205,794 -
685,307 2,300,000 59,544 (2,281,510) 763,341 763,341
- - - (244) (244) -
- 1,222,250 10,568 (977,321) 255,497 255,497
- 465,308 50,000 (478,915) 36,393 36,393
- 728,006 512,280 (1,920,739) (680,453) -
730,034 1,937,868 4,260 (1,945,988) 726,174 726,174
88,880 260,000 - (258,123) 90,757 90,757
28,447 998,379 22,191 (1,099,026) (50,009) -
1,000 - - (1,000) ; -
28,251 - - (28,251) ; -
2,505,404 22,285,686 1,974,470  (26,478,655) 286,905 2,952,135
47,036 - - (47,036) ; -
75,250 - - - 75,250 75,250
178,598 - - (178,598) ; -
22,201 - - (22,201) ; -
323,085 - - (247,835) 75,250 75,250
2,828,489 22,285,686 1,974,470 (26,726,490 362,155 3,027,385




MOUNT ISA ABORIGINAL COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH SERVICES LTD ABN:96 130 300 355

Directors’ Declaration
For the year ending 30 June 2019

The dinecinn dadste that

frre are reasonable giounds io belbeve that The regiviened ety i sble bo pay al of it dabls. B3 and when thiry
It s and payable; and

2 the finshcipl gtalements and notes salisty the requireents of ke AusiraBan Chanties mod Nof-for- ok
Commission Aot 2012

W;&dhwm:m B 15{2) of tha Austraden Chastiss snd Nof-fomaoll Commizsen Regulsicn
par]]

(i 121 S . —
Meche! Martin

Dbt this A det OV ERqf) g 100
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